[bookmark: _GoBack]
Program Committee Meeting[image: ]












May 6, 2021
ShaRhonda Knott Dawson, Committee Chair





Table of Contents
Meeting Agenda………………………………….…..…......…...3
January 21st Minutes (Attachment A) …………….….…...…. 4-9
Independent Living Memos..(Attachment B-D) ……..….….10-12
Advocacy Memos (Attachment E-G)......................................13-19
Civil Rights Memo (Attachment H)........................................20-25
















Access Living Program Committee
Meeting Agenda
May 6, 2021

Zoom Meeting : 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89650653357?pwd=UjJBQ2lPOCtVeHRFd291c1JqNFZ2UT09
Phone : +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)    
Meeting ID: 896 5065 3357



1. 4:00 PM- Call to Order (Chair Knott Dawson)
2. 4:01 PM- Roll Call (Chair Knott Dawson)
3. 4:02 PM- Welcome (Chair Knott Dawson)
4. 4:03 PM- Approval of Minutes from Last Meeting (Chair Knott Dawson) (Attachment A)
5. 4:05 PM - Independent Living Updates (Seye)
a. Update on CLIHTF Grant (Attachment B)
b. Overview of Scope of Work for MY-CIL/Youth and Employment (Attachment C)
c. Update on Stepping Stones National Project (Attachment D)
6. 4:15 PM- Advocacy Department Updates (Smock)
a. Legislative update (Attachment E)
b. Policy Screening Tool Updates and Requests for Approval
· Sign-on Update: Anjanette Young Ordinance (Attachment F)
· Policy Screening tool Revisions and New Positions Approval Request (Attachment G forthcoming)
7. 5:25 PM: Civil Rights Department Updates (Walden) (Attachment H)
a. Case against City of Chicago - Inaccessible Homeless Shelter
b. Case against Chicago Public Schools - Inaccessible School
c. Historic Home/Neighborhood Case - Settled
d. Beckwith Program at the University of Illinois - Resolved
8. 5:30 PM-Closing/Adjournment (Chair Knott Dawson)
 






Access Living Program CommitteeA.

Meeting Minutes
January 21, 20214-5:30

In Attendance: Molly Walsh, Mark Owen, Larry Goodman, Denise Avant, Joyce Lane, David Capozzi, Francine Bell, ShaRhonda Knott Dawson, Shari Runner.

Staff In Attendance: Amber Smock, Daisy Feidt, Ken Walden, Trish Seye, Jerome Palliser, Reba Pope, Kristin Gaspar. 


1. 4:00 PM- Call to Order (Chair Knott Dawson)
2. 4:01 PM- Roll Call (Chair Knott Dawson)
3. 4:02 PM- Welcome (Chair Knott Dawson)
4. 4:03 PM- Approval of Minutes from Last Meeting (Chair Knott Dawson)
a. Mark Owen moves to approve minutes
b. Larry Goodman seconds the motion
c. Minutes are approved unanimously.
5. 4:05 PM - Grounding Exercise (Chair Knott Dawson)	
a. In my tradition before big meetings we call on ancestors and people who bring us to this work. The discussion is often “why” do we do this work, but we often have a person in mind to honor. Everyone should think of a person who inspired you to do this work, so we can honor, admire, and call attention to them. Then we’ll say “àṣẹ” in union. (Chair Knott Dawson)
6. 4:20 PM - Introductions (Program Committee Members)
7. 4:29 PM - Independent Living Updates (Feidt)
a. Introduction of New Director of Independent Living (Attachment A) 
i. Trish has only been here for two weeks and is already providing tremendous insight into areas and bringing good perspectives on different issues. Sometimes Access Living is focused on our advocacy work, but the importance of our services are understated at the board level. Trish’s department is the biggest at Access Living. We’re very happy to have her onboard. (Feidt)
b. Vaccination Considerations for Direct Service Staff
i. We are happy to report CDPH has determined that our staff  are eligible  for the COVID vaccine, and many staff are in the process of getting it. Some staff, however, are showing initial reluctance. We haven’t discussed mandated vaccination, but I wanted to ask the committee’s input about the most effective ways to encourage staff to get vaccinated. (Feidt)
ii.  “There is a difference between FDA authorization and approval. As of right now, it is authorized. Approval is a harder process and takes more time, and since this is a new product we simply don’t have that information yet. There are a portion of people who really want it, but a much larger portion are hesitant because they would like to learn more, and are more likely to get the vaccine if they are given time, resources, and examples. Even RUSH is still not at 95% vaccine acceptance rates, but we’re optimistic the majority of people will get it in time.” (Goodman)
iii. “What is Access Living’s current plan? Is it focused around protective gear, or a number to strive for? (ex: If 80% of the staff is vaccinated we can open the building.)? (Chair Knott Dawson)
1. Some staff weren’t able to schedule their vaccine for logistical reasons. Even with our nursing home work, they’re able to do it without direct contact with consumers. Those questions are ones that we’re thinking about. One question we are thinking about is whether the state may mandate vaccines for some of its workers and subcontractors such as Access Living. (Feidt)
2. If you have been vaccinated we know it is very effective in preventing disease and death. We still don’t know if it prevents asymptomatic infection. Until we know these answers, the CDC still promotes wearing PPE. We are in an unusual time, but we will have these answers in the coming months.(Goodman)
iv. Are we still in Phase 1A or 1B? (Chair Knott Dawson)
1. The governor has opened to 1B. The city of Chicago will be opening up to 1B on Monday. There will be talks about people jumping the line, and those talks will continue while we still have vaccine shortages. On a practical level, it’s still better to get needles in arms than sitting in freezers. It’s important to do our best to distribute vaccines with equity. (Goodman)
v. If the second round of vaccines is missed, does that negate the first? (Lane)
1. Almost everybody agrees that you would get your second shot as soon as you can, but no need to redo your first if you miss the window. Your antibody levels continue to rise even if you only get the first dose. (Goodman)
8. 4:51 PM- Advocacy Department Updates (Smock)
a. Government Affairs Outlook (Attachment B)
i. State level
1. The new Illinois legislature has been inaugurated. State Representative Chris Welch is now the Speaker of the House. This is good for Access Living since he has met with our staff and community in the past. (Smock)
2. The Illinois Legislature had their lame duck session at the beginning of the month. The Illinois Legislative Black Caucus (ILBC) put forward a series of four bills addressing racial disparities. The one that didn’t pass was reforms related to healthcare and human services. Part of the ILBC concerted effort on criminal justice reform was a bill that ended cash bail, which is incredibly important for people with disabilities since many don’t have money due to SSI level income or asset limits. This also changes the landscape with some work we’re doing trying to reduce the number of incarcerated people with disabilities. (Smock)
3. There was an omnibus education bill that passed, containing important information for students with disabilities and remote learning. (Smock)
4. Access Living has three separate individuals with whom we have different contracts related to lobbying. Our lead lobbyist is Dave Lowitzki, focusing on healthcare, human services, incarceration, police reform, etc. We also have Phil Milsk who will support our lobbying on education to aide Chris Yun, the Education Policy Analyst. Finally we subscribe to email updates on developmental disabilities policies by Ed McManus, who also provides phone consultation as needed. (Smock)
5. There are currently discussions about how to engage with legislators remotely, as well as what remote group events look like. Access Living will be in a retreat with INCIL to discuss statewide advocacy. (Smock)
6. This year the Governor is joining the State of the State speech and the budget speech into one, which will happen on Feb 17th. We are also quietly working with the state to hold them accountable to good benchmarks on home and community based services. (Smock)
ii. Federal level
1. The Biden administration has already made some fairly significant appointments. Andres Gallegos was just named Chair of the National Council on Disabilities, which is the seat that Marca once held. Sam Bagenstos used to run the disability rights section at the U.S. Department of Justice and has been named general counsel for the US Office of Management and Budget. Alison Barkoff is a very skilled policy advocate and she has been named Principal Deputy Administrator for the Administration on Community Living under HHS. President Biden appointed a Black woman with a disability named Reyma McCoy McDeid as Commissioner of the Independent Living Administration, which oversees all the centers for independent living who receive federal funding. (Smock)
2. Executive Orders are also coming out for federal Covid response. While things are moving quickly, the outlook is bright to advocate on the federal level. (Smock)
b. Update on Covid-19 vaccination, relief, and testing outlook generally for the Illinois disability community (verbal report).
i. Access Living has been able to build relationships with both the Illinois Department of Public Health and the Chicago Department of Public Health. Both plans have prioritized healthcare workers, and seniors/people with disabilities in congregate settings. We have received strong messaging that people with disabilities who live in the community who rely on personal care services are not prioritized. We are trying to educate the state and city that focusing on congregate settings is a problem related to institutional bias. The state is basing their plan on the CDC committee on immunization. The state wants us to provide data on people with disabilities and their covid rates, but they are not collecting any. We are continuing conversations nevertheless. (Smock)
ii. We have asked staff who are getting vaccines to report back whether the facility was accessible. We are building a store of knowledge, and we are going to present that information to CDPH as an opportunity to become more accessible. If you know people who are getting the vaccine, please let us know if it was accessible for people with disabilities. (Smock)
1. “When I was tested, I went to a testing site, and because I was not in a car, but a motorized wheelchair,  I could not get attested. Thankfully I found a site at a hospital. My concern is some sites are administering vaccines through car windows and people with disabilities have issues with getting in cars. Is this something Access Living is meaning to address?” (Bell)
2. “Another issue involving accessibility. I had a recent exposure and had to be tested. I was able to find a place to walk in… but once I was tested, everything was online, and in a couple of instances I had problems seeing the results on a screen reader.” (Avant)
3. We had a meeting today to discuss these issues, and developed a short list of basic things to use as a checklist to test accessibility at various locations. The goal at this time is to collect information. (Walden)
4. Loyola uses MyChart to gather all your medical information in one place. However it was down a lot, and when I called they couldn’t fix it immediately. The demand is too great. Also, Loyola set up a special vaccination center and the automatic doors didn’t work, the parking wasn’t good, and it seemed like they tried to find a place without thinking about accessibility. (Chair Knott Dawson)
5. Next week is a full board meeting. As the chair, you could ask the board to give their personal stories to Ken to help this collection process. (Smock)
iii. Community Education Opportunities
1.  Dr. Miles is working on a town hall involving staff from both IDPH and CDPH to answer questions about the vaccination process to people with disabilities. (Smock)
9. 5:19 PM: Civil Rights Department Updates (Walden)
a. COVID-19 Crisis Standards of Care State Advocacy (Attachment C)
i. “Crisis standards of care” is a term that describes hospital standards of care when risk of getting overwhelmed. In early 2020, due to the COVID crises, we were involved with encouraging the state to issue guidance to hospitals to handle decision making when you have a shortage of supplies, such as ventilators and beds.. In April the state of Illinois encouraged but did not require certain equal treatment principles for people with disabilities and people of color that would not result in discrimination, and would result instead in equal treatment. The crisis fortunately slowed, but the numbers rose recently. We became involved again with the state to revisit this guidance. IDPH and IDHR officials met with us in December 2020, and we followed-up with recommended protocols for mandatory guidance. We analyzed guidance from other states as well. We are still waiting for a response from IDPH. (Walden)
ii. US Department of Health and Human Services office of Civil Rights is about to publish a request for information, asking for discrimination in healthcare. There will also be a 60 day comment period.  (Smock) 
iii. Report on New Matter at University of Illinois re: Beckwith Program
1. This is a model program to provide services to people with disabilities so they can attend college. The program was abruptly terminated in the fall. Students became involved with PACE CIL, which then contacted us. We threatened to sue to force the state to reopen the program, and the University of Illinois agreed to restore most of its services for the spring semester. (Walden)
10. 5:31 PM-Closing/Adjournment (Chair Knott Dawson)



To: Access Living Board Members
From: Latricia Seye, Independent Living DirectorB.

Re: CLIHTF Pending Application
Date: April 18, 2021


Overview:

The Chicago Low-Income Housing Trust Fund assists residents living in poverty, with incomes at or below 30 percent of area median income (AMI), by providing well maintained and affordable housing. We also partner with Social Service Agencies to ensure that chronically homeless persons, veterans, single mothers, and many more under-served Chicagoans have access to affordable housing through our program.

The Rental Subsidy Program (the “RSP”) The Rental Subsidy Program provides rental assistance through an annual agreement with property owners and managers within the City of Chicago to assist households living at or below thirty percent (30%) of the AMI.
Access Living’s Responsibility:
· Support approximately 25 tenants with disabilities in obtaining affordable and accessible housing within a year
· Work with prospective tenants through interviews, reviews of their current living situations to confirm a source of income but no greater than 30% AMI
· Refer prospective tenants to a unit subsidized by the Chicago Low Income Housing Trust Fund.
· Access Living’s Information and Referral Housing Coordinator would refer landlords with accessible units to the program that would like access to the subsidy. Making clear to potential landlords rents will not exceed Fair Market Rents and will be comparable to the area
· Goal to begin leasing up by July 2021
· All allocated units occupied within a year, and all lease terms will be committed to at least 12 months
· Access Living is awaiting an update from CLIHTF on whether our application will be accepted





C.

To: Access Living Board Members
From: Latricia Seye, Independent Living Director
Re: Scope of Work for Minority Youth and Centers for Independent Living (MY-CIL)
Date: April 18, 2021
The Youth and Employment Team of the Independent Living Department will be assisting the Independent Living Research Utilization (ILRU) with designing and conducting learning collaboratives as co-facilitators

· The goal of this learning collaborative is for participating Centers for Independent Living (CILs) to develop and implement additional programs and services for the transition of youth with an emphasis on
· Youth with disabilities from racially and ethnically diverse populations
· Out-of-school youth
· Potential topics (which may include additional Access Living Staff outside the Youth and Employment Team)
· Strategic planning
· Identifying the needs of our consumers and implement programming based on need
· Providing insight into Access Living’s process of identifying supportive gaps for consumers in the community
Collaborative Stipend
· $24,725 for one year with an option to join for subsequent years








D.


To: Access Living Board Members
From: Latricia Seye, Independent Living Director
Re: Scope of Work for Stepping Stones National Project, Pending Application
Date: April 18, 2021
Access Living: Scope of Work

Yr. 1: $30,000
Access Living will:
· participate in meetings to update and revise the Stepping Stones curriculum and move content to an online format prior to large scale multisite testing
· help design and deliver train the trainer materials for collaborating community sites (Centers for Independent Living across the country) and support delivery of Stepping Stones given our expertise and prior experience
· assist in designing and co-facilitating a community living town hall at Access Living or online
· help recruit for and co facilitate a focus group to seek input from people with lived experience on project deliverables
· help recruit for Stepping Stones and RRTC training activities
· provide expert consultation on community living issues, policies, systems changes, and rights/legislation to the RRTC
· disseminate information about Stepping Stones and RRTC community living activities to our network of consumers, disability rights organizations, service deliverers, policy makers and other stakeholders.

Year 2: $30,000 /yr.
Access Living will:
· participate in check-in meetings where other CILs/sites can ask for an expert consult on how to deliver Stepping Stones sessions more effectively and how to address topics or issues within a community delivery system
· participate in ongoing edits and revisions to the Stepping Stones curriculum and delivery
· recruit participants in Chicagoland for ongoing Stepping Stones and RRTC activities
· attend quarterly meetings per year to review findings from other sites and to give feedback and offer recommendations and insights
· disseminate information about Stepping Stones and RRTC community living activities to our network of consumers, disability rights organizations, service deliverers, policy makers and other stakeholders.

Year 3: $30,000 /yr.
Access Living will:
· participate in check-in meetings where other CILs/sites can ask for a consult on how to deliver more effectively or how to tackle certain topics or discussions better
· attend quarterly meetings to review findings from other sites and to give feedback and offer recommendations for improving the consistency of Stepping Stones curriculum and delivery
· assist in designing and cofacilitating a town hall on community living (onsite or online remotely)
· help recruit for and co facilitate a focus group to seek input from people with lived experience on project deliverables
· recruit participants in Chicagoland for ongoing Stepping Stones and RRTC activities
· disseminate information about Stepping Stones and RRTC community living activities to our network of consumers, disability rights organizations, service deliverers, policy makers and other stakeholders
Year 4: $30,000 /yr.
Access Living will:
· participate in check-in meetings where other CILs/sites can ask for a consult on how to deliver more effectively or how to tackle certain topics or discussions better
· attend quarterly meetings per year to review findings from other sites and to give feedback and offer recommendations on consistent delivery of Stepping Stones
· help recruit for Stepping Stones and RRTC activities
· disseminate information about Stepping Stones and RRTC community living activities to our network of consumers, disability rights organizations, service deliverers, policy makers and other stakeholders

Year 5: $30,000 /yr.
Access Living will:
· participate in check-in meetings where other CILs/sites can ask for a consult on how to deliver more effectively or how to tackle certain topics or discussions better
· attend quarterly meetings per year to review findings from other sites and to give feedback and offer recommendations on consistent delivery of Stepping Stones
· assist in designing and cofacilitating a town hall on community living (onsite or online remotely)
· assist in recruiting and cofacilitating a summative focus group to evaluate Stepping Stones impact and recommendations for continuing in the future across more sites
· disseminate information about Stepping Stones and RRTC community living activities to our network of consumers, disability rights organizations, service deliverers, policy makers and other stakeholders
· collaborate on presentations and publications to highlight Stepping Stones findings and activities.






To: Access Living Program CommitteeE.

From: Amber Smock, Director of Advocacy
Re: Access Living Spring State Legislative Advocacy 2021
Date: April 29, 2021
 

At the time of this writing, we are about four weeks out from the end of the Spring legislative session. Friday, April 23 was the deadline to move bills from their chamber of origin to the other chamber for consideration. This memo is an update to the memo provided for last week’s Board meeting, considering the new status of the bills after April 23. The next two important deadlines are May 14, which is the deadline for moving bills out of committee, and May 28, which is the main deadline for voting on bills on the floor. As a reminder our two contract lobbyists, Dave Lowitzki and Phil Milsk, have been working hard on the bills below.

Of procedural note: this year, the legislature is absolutely swamped with thousands of bills. As a result, facing the deadline to get bills out of chamber, many bills were passed through a consent agenda. To make it onto the consent agenda, chief sponsors had to show that they had a majority of committed votes. Bills passed through the consent agenda were recorded as being passed unanimously. Spending on the volume of bills under consideration, we may see the use of consent agendas again in May.

Access Living Core Bills

· Legislative Accessibility Act: Also known as SB 180/HB 855, the Legislative Accessibility Act aims to streamline disability access to the proceedings of the Illinois General Assembly, and establish a process for phasing in accessibility improvements. This bill is now stalled, but the Illinois Secretary of State’s office is willing to work with us in May to set up a working group to identify access improvements and funding. Depending on that work, there may or may not be a related bill for the fall veto session or for next spring.

· Supporting Alternatives to Emergency Response: HB 2784 is the Community Emergency Services and Supports Act (CESSA). The goal of CESSA is to ensure that 911 emergency dispatch can actually dispatch appropriate non-police support for people with disabilities who are in mental or behavioral health crises. CESSA passed the House and is now in the Senate. 

· Extending Transition Services for Graduating Seniors with Disabilities: HB 2748 would allow students with significant disabilities, who are graduating during the pandemic's remote learning, to access in-person transition services even after they age out. This bill has faced opposition from school administrators who claim that it will cost funds they don’t have. We have been working to identify pandemic funding to support this. This bill is VERY popular with impacted families. The bill has passed the House and is now in the Senate.

· Ending Source of Income Discrimination Statewide: HB 2775 is designed to end source of income discrimination for renters statewide. This bill also faces an uphill battle but is important to people with disabilities. Nonetheless, this bill also passed the House and is now in the Senate.

· Seclusion and Restraint Bill: Access Living has been pushing hard with allies to end the use of seclusion and restraint on students with disabilities through the bill HB 219. Private school administrators have fought hard to keep the ability to lock students in prone restraints. We thought the main bill sponsor had committed to banning the use of prone restraint, but she introduced an amendment to allow it; therefore we are dropping support for the bill. Unfortunately, this bill passed the House and is now in the Senate, where we will continue to oppose on the basis of the amendment.

· Extending Complaint Period for Families Impacted by CPS Service Denial: HB 2425 provides that complaints concerning delays and denials of special education services in the 2016-2017 or 2017-2018 school year by the Chicago school district as a result of the adoption of policies and procedures identified by the State Board of Education as unlawful must be filed on or before September 30, 2022 (rather than September 30, 2021). Access Living was one of the original groups that called for ISBE’s investigation of this problem. This bill passed the House and is now in the Senate.

Sample Bills Access Living Supports

As an example, here are some active bills that Access Living is not leading, but that we have supported because they will have positive impact for people with disabilities. This list is not comprehensive but rather a sample of bills of interest that align with Access Living’s mission/policy positions.

· SB 655: Repeals the statute creating the offense of criminal transmission of HIV. This will decriminalize people living with HIV and AIDS.
· HB 116: Lifts the ban on rent control statewide. 
· HB 1829: Provides for automatic renewal of disability status for homestead tax exemption.
· HB 26: To ensure that the content available on any third party online curriculum that is made available to enrolled students or the public by a school district through the Internet is readily accessible to persons with disabilities, in compliance with Level AA of the World Wide Web Consortium's Web Content Accessibility Guidelines.
· HB 292: Will increase the personal needs allowance (PNA) allocated to residents of group homes. Those on Medicaid are currently only allowed a PNA of $30 maximum per month.

Questions regarding our legislative agenda may be directed to Amber Smock, asmock@accessliving.org. 














F.

Access Living Policy Screening Tool: Anjanette Young Ordinance
*Note: This tool was crafted in partnership with and with approval from the Access Living Board Program Committee.

FRAME the advocacy situation: Access Living has been requested to sign on in support of the Anjanette Young Ordinance. Essentially, Access Living is being asked to sign on in support of a ban on no-knock warrants. The overview of this ordinance is as follows:

The Anjanette Young ordinance would implement a series of common-sense changes that will have the immediate effect of preventing harm to Chicago families and police officers alike:

• It bans CPD’s use of “no-knock” or “knock and announce” warrants, which do not give family members enough time to answer the door in a dignified manner, and can lead to violence and even death, as demonstrated by the police killing of Breonna Taylor in Louisville.
• It requires officers to corroborate tips from informants before seeking warrants, confirm that the actual target of the warrant can be found at the address, and avoid raiding family homes at times when children are present.
• It requires that CPD must use the least intrusive method when executing warrants, as well as practices that prioritize human dignity, privacy and property interests, and the sanctity of all human life.
• It expressly prohibits officers from pointing guns at children.
• It imposes the affirmative responsibility on CPD to repair damage that they cause to people’s homes and to make immediate arrangements to secure homes before they leave.
• It requires all officers conducting raids to wear and use body cameras.
• Most importantly, it requires transparency and accountability to the public and victims of wrong raids. The Ordinance demands that CPD track and publish information about wrong raids and it gives anyone depicted in footage from CPD bodycams the absolute right to that video within 48 hours of their request.

Basic Assumptions (keep these in mind as you consider the Impact Questions)
· First, our consumers/disability community members are our most important constituent group, most of whom have very low incomes.
· Second, our advocacy depends on our ability to hold a wide range of systems accountable for removing access barriers and creating equity for people with disabilities
· Third, it is essential for Access Living to be able to influence a wide range of issues for the benefit of people with disabilities
· Fourth, Access Living exists within a vast network of both human services providers and advocacy groups we rely on to move our work forward.
· Fifth, it is important to Access Living to consider our various funding relationships

Impact Questions (can be answered yes/no or on a scale of 1-10, 1 being the most negative impact and 10 being the most positive impact---5 would be neutral...note that some questions carry a +1 to weight the score as they were deemed very important)
· Does the issue help us stay on mission? add +1 to the Impact score
Access Living mission (for reference): We ignite disability power and pride, provide critical services, and break down systemic barriers to create a stronger, more inclusive society.
Discuss: (include pros and cons)
Pros: No-knock warrants are a systemic mechanism do not allow for negotiation of disability by those living in the household where the warrant is to be served, whether the warrant is for a person with a disability or whether there are just people in the household who are disabled. Furthermore, the nature of no knock warrants will create accessibility issues for many people with disabilities.
Cons: Access Living’s mission does not directly address the realities of PWDs in the criminal legal system or how PWDs in the system identify themselves.
Impact score: 6

· Is the issue likely to improve the lives of people with disabilities? add +1 to the Impact score
Discuss: (include pros and cons)
Pros: Police disproportionately murder PWDs including Dennis Tuttle, Ismael Mena, Breonna Taylor, and 92-year-old Kathryn Johnston following no-knock raids at wrong addresses. 19-month-old Bounkham Phonesavanh was severally disabled when police executing a no-knock warrant threw a flash-bang grenade into his playpen. Despite uncorroborated allegations, no drugs or drug dealers were found in his home.
The ordinance requires the police to avoid entering homes when children are present. It also requires police to obtain corroborating evidence. Ending no-knock warrants will prevent future deaths and disabling violence that result from no-knock raids.
No-knock raids are also problematic when they are carried out where someone in the household is not able to readily respond or engage because of a disability.
Cons: The ordinance does not address other types of warranted raids or no-warranted raids. The ordinance also does not directly address accessibility in raids
Impact score: 11

· Does the issue maintain/improve the role of government in serving people with disabilities?
Discuss: (include pros and cons)
Pros: The ordinance requires governmental accountability through corroborating tips, confirming targets, transparency, record keeping, the use of body cameras, affirmative duties to use the least amount of force possible and to repair property damage caused by police. These safeguards will also be more likely to turn up instances of potential interactions with people with disabilities.
Cons: None known at this time. Opponents of the ordinance would likely say that no-knocks are sometimes necessary to apprehend people that law enforcement considers elusive or dangerous.
Impact score: 10

· Does the issue improve the role of corporations in serving people with disabilities?
Discuss: (include pros and cons)
Pros: Corporations interested in racial justice would be more likely to donate to AL if we had a clear position on no-knock warrants. We would like these kinds of donations.
Cons: Corporations with strong law enforcement connections may not want to donate to AL if we have a public position on this.
Impact score: 5

· Does the issue maintain/improve our relationship with our advocacy or service partners?
Discuss: (include pros and cons)
Pros: this and other criminal legal reform sign-ons will greatly
improve our relationship with disability justice organizations, racial justice organizations, and criminal legal reform groups.
Cons: As a white led organization that has not historically done criminal legal reform work, AL does not have credibility with disability justice, racial justice, and criminal legal reform groups and therefore may be seen as jumping on a bandwagon.
Impact score: 8

· Does the issue maintain/improve our relationship with funders?
Discuss: (include pros and cons)
Pros: This fits within the parameters of the MacArthur Safety &
Justice Challenge grant.
Cons: Unknown at this time. The exception might be if any funders prioritize law enforcement above what our community grassroots people say they need. This is probably more likely to happen with individuals than with groups.
Impact score: 7

· Does the issue improve Access Living’s sustainability?
Discuss: (include pros and cons)
Pros: Taking stances on criminal legal reform issues such as this will increase AL’s sustainability. It may attract donors who may otherwise have passed us by. Beyond criminal legal system reform folks, this position would be of interest to those investing in racial justice/antiracism.
Cons: Unknown at this time.
Impact score: 8

· Are other groups already working on this issue? (NEW QUESTION)
Discuss: (include pros and cons)
Pros: Groups including BLM Chicago, the NAACP, Network 49, and the University of Chicago Law School, all whom AL partners with in the use of force working group have joined several other civil rights and community-based advocacy organizations in support of this ordinance.
Cons: Presumably the FOP thinks this ordinance is a bad idea. But we don’t work with them and in fact the FOP agenda is ableist as well.
Impact score: 7

· Do we have expertise in this area? (NEW QUESTION)
Discuss:
Pros: The disability & incarceration policy analyst has expertise in
this area. Various staff have life experience where people they know have been affected by no-knocks.
Cons: There is not institutional expertise in this area.
Impact score: 5


Result: The average impact score of the above is 7.4. Below 5 would be a negative or no position. 5 is a neutral position. Above 5 is a positive/supportive position. We recommend signing onto this ordinance.













CONFIDENTIAL AND PRIVILEGED: DO NOT DISTRIBUTEH.


MEMORANDUM

TO: Program Committee

FROM: Charles Petrof, Mary Rosenberg, and Ken Walden

RE: Update on City of Chicago case (Affordable Rental Housing Program), City of Chicago case (Emergency Shelters), CPS case, Historic Home/Historic Neighborhood case, UI Health case, Haymarket treatment facility case, Beckwith Program at the University of Illinois case

DATE: April 20, 2021

_____________________________________________________________________________

City of Chicago (Affordable Rental Housing Program) – Federal Court Case

UPDATES IN BOLD

This case alleges the City of Chicago’s Affordable Rental Housing Program, over three decades, failed to comply with federal civil rights laws that require the program to be accessible to people with disabilities, and that this failure has contributed to the dearth of affordable and accessible housing opportunities throughout the city.

As reported previously, the parties have moved into the discovery phase of litigation, which involves the sharing of information with each side via formal written requests for information, and interviews with potential witnesses.

District Court Judge Dow referred the parties to Magistrate Judge Cole to manage the discovery process. We have regularly been before Judge Cole. On two separate occasions in August and September, Judge Cole ordered the City to produce certain documents. In each instance, the City failed to comply with Cole’s order. Accordingly, we filed a Motion to Enforce those orders, which asks Judge Cole to require the City to produce a certain number of documents by the 30th day of each month. Judge Cole granted the Motion, which forced the City to produce certain documents in a timely manner.

City of Chicago (Housing Shelters) – Federal Court Case

UPDATES IN BOLD

This case alleges the City of Chicago’s Emergency Shelter Care System is not accessible to people with mobility disabilities, in violation of Title II of the ADA.

The City filed a Motion to Dismiss our complaint. On August 25, after completing briefing on the City’s Motion, District Court Judge Feinerman took oral argument and focused his questions on the issue of standing. After oral argument, Judge Feinerman ordered discovery to begin but took the motion to dismiss under advisement. Some of Judge Feinerman’s questions suggested he believed a plaintiff could only have standing to pursue injunctive relief if the plaintiff remained homeless during the pendency of the entire litigation. We disagree and think housing instability, with a future threat of homelessness, is sufficient. This question seems to be the primary impediment to our effort to address the lack of accessible shelter placements.

Not long ago, the case was reassigned to a new judge, Judge Valderrama, who just recently ruled on the Motion to Dismiss. He ruled our client has standing to sue for injunctive relief, which is a big victory that enables the matter to move forward toward the goal of remedying the systemic access problem within the shelter system. However, he also decided our client does not have standing to sue for individual damages. This is a disappointment, but fortunately our client did not have a large claim for individual damages.

On April 8, 2021, Access Living’s group DRACH (Disability Rights Action Coalition for Housing) joined the litigation. DRACH alleges standing, both on behalf of its homeless members, and in its own right for frustration of its mission to advance the cause of affordable and accessible housing. If allowed to continue in this case with Ms. Carter, DRACH’s participation will protect the suit from a claim of mootness. If Ms. Carter finds stable housing, her claim may become moot, but DRACH’s claims will remain. That will allow us to address the underlying question about the accessibility of the City’s shelter system.

Chicago Public Schools – Federal Court Case

UPDATES IN BOLD

We represent a CPS primary school student and her mother in their demand for installation of an elevator in the student’s school, which the student needs in order to make the school accessible to her.

On December 17, 2019, we completed briefing on our motion for summary judgment. Our motion argues that CPS violated the ADA in two separate ways. First, we argued the CPS school selection process discriminates against students with disabilities because only half of the schools available through that process are physically accessible, giving students with disabilities half the choices enjoyed by students without disabilities. Second, we argued CPS should be required to accommodate our client’s disability because installing an elevator at one of its schools would not fundamentally alter CPS’s activities. In furtherance of this second argument, we stressed that for a district the size of CPS, the cost of an elevator is dwarfed by its general activities, even in years of great financial hardship.

On December 17, 2019, CPS completed briefing its own motion for summary judgment. The CPS motion argued CPS’s offer to transfer our client to a different school that operates in an accessible building is all that is required for compliance with Section 504 or the ADA. CPS further argued that transfer to an accessible building has been ruled to be a sufficient remedy under the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act (IDEA).

Several months ago, the Court issued a disappointing and surprising decision that held CPS has no obligation to accommodate the child and install an elevator. Thereafter, we filed a Motion for Reconsideration (i.e., a request that the judge reconsider his decision) that argues the Court’s decision is contrary to (a) established Seventh Circuit precedent and (b) the plain reading of the ADA.

Judge Dow recently issued a decision on the Motion for Reconsideration. Fortunately, Judge Dow actually conceded that the breadth of his earlier ruling was an error, and he corrected the error in the decision. That is a win. However, although he conceded that error, it did not change his overall ruling that CPS did not have to accommodate our client.

After reviewing Judge Dow’s decision on reconsideration, our client has elected not to pursue appeal in this matter. Although there are many factors relevant to that decision, an overriding consideration was the practical fact that any relief that might come from an appeal would not improve the accessibility of the client’s school until after she graduated. The case is closed.

Historic Home/Historic Neighborhood case - Federal Court Case and State Court Case

UPDATES IN BOLD

Federal Court: In December, Access Living and the law firm Relman Colfax filed a fair housing complaint on behalf of a family that wants to modify an historic home in the historic neighborhood of Old Town to make it accessible for their 14-year-old daughter who uses a wheelchair. Namely, the family desires to create an accessible entrance, garage, and small living space in the rear of the building, install an elevator from there to upper floors, and make other accessibility improvements. Sadly, the family’s effort is opposed by a group of neighbors who comprise the Old Town Triangle Association (OTTA), who claim the modifications will compromise the historical nature of the neighborhood and home, even though a number of historical preservation organizations have approved the family’s plans for the home. The complaint alleges the OTTA’s actions violate the Fair Housing Act, including the provision that prohibits coercion, intimidation, threats, or interference against someone who exercises his/her housing rights. The OTTA filed an Answer (i.e. a formal response to the complaint).

In March, the parties attended a settlement conference before Magistrate Judge David Weisman. The case settled with the following principal agreements:

· the family can move forward with all needed accessibility improvements;
· the OTTA will, for at least the next three years, establish an Accessibility Committee to identify and address accessibility issues in the Old Town Triangle Historic District and the Old Town Triangle Art Fair;
· the OTTA will, for at least the next three years, provide, without charge, a booth at the Art Fair for Access Living or its designee; and
· the OTTA will pay damages and attorneys’ fees to the family.

State Court: You may recall we previously helped this same family win approval for its planned modifications from the Chicago Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA). Unfortunately, the OTTA appealed the ZBA’s decision to the Circuit Court (state court), and that case remains pending in that court. Access Living, as an organization, successfully intervened in the state court case to stress the fair housing implications of the case, and urged the court to uphold the ZBA’s decision. The parties filed briefs in the case, and last week appeared (virtually) in court to present their respective positions. At the end of the hearing, the court affirmed/upheld the ZBA’s decision. In other words, the family won and can make the long-sought improvements to make the home accessible. This state court case is now closed.

UI Health – Federal Court Case

UPDATES IN BOLD

On February 14, 2020, with our pro bono partners Andres Gallegos and Jennifer Sender of Robbins, Salomon & Patt, we sued the Board of Trustees for the University of Illinois concerning two ADA/504 violations in their UI Health system.
Our plaintiff, staff member Dr. Angel Miles, had two separate medical tests scheduled at UI Health. Because Dr. Miles uses a wheelchair, she recognized the possibility that the testing facility may not be accessible, and therefore advocated for accommodations at the outset when she started to schedule the tests. Despite her advocacy, UI Health scheduled both tests in facilities that were inaccessible to wheelchair users. Dr. Miles also discovered UI Health had no person or office with responsibility for coordinating accessible healthcare, in violation of the ADA.

UI Health answered the Complaint, and we have begun discovery.

A productive settlement conference was held on February 24, 2021. The parties agreed to continue settlement discussions with a second settlement conference scheduled for March 23, 2021.

Settlement conferences continue to be productive with our next conference scheduled for April 26, 2021. At this point, the parties have settled the claims for monetary relief. The claims for injunctive relief have also made great progress. UI Health has hired LCM Architects to survey its medical facilities’ restrooms and recommend steps to bring them into compliance with the ADA. UI Health anticipates complying with all recommended steps. UI Health has also generally agreed to employ an ADA Coordinator to oversee accessibility and requests for accommodation. The parties continue to discuss the details of the ADA Coordinator’s role and the accessibility improvements to the facilities.

Haymarket Treatment Facility in Itasca – Local Administrative Case and
Possible Federal Court Case

UPDATES BOLD

We represent Haymarket in its effort to operate a treatment facility in Itasca for individuals recovering from addition to drugs and/or alcohol. The Haymarket effort has faced stiff and vocal opposition from members of the Itasca community. Note that those in recovery are considered people with disabilities under the federal Fair Housing Act.

With our law firm partner, Daspin & Aument, we aim to get approval for the facility from the Village of Itasca, through a series of hearing zoning/planning hearings. If necessary and appropriate, we will file a proactive fair housing lawsuit against the Village if the zoning/planning hearings result in a denial of the facility.

The zoning/planning hearings began toward the end of last year. They occur on
Wednesday evenings from 7:00 – 10:00 p.m. Hearing dates are currently scheduled into May 2021.

Beckwith Program at the University of Illinois – Advocacy Matter

Through its Beckwith Residential Services and Supports program, the University of Illinois has long been a national leader in educating students whose disabilities might interfere with their ability to attend college. This fall, the University abruptly canceled this decades-old program, leaving the enrolled students without services. The enrolled students scrambled to privately hire replacements for many of the services, and with PACE CIL, the local Center for Independent Living, advocated for U of I to reopen the program. The University initially refused.

The students and their advocate at PACE CIL contacted Access Living, and as a group designed a strategy to push the University to a point where advocacy could be successful. Access Living threatened to sue for reasonable accommodations for the current students that essentially asked the University to restore many of the services that were previously part of the program. After negotiation, the University agreed to most of the student’s demands, and also agreed to reinstate the program for the spring semester.

This spring semester, the University reinstated the Beckwith program, and all our clients continued in the program this semester. In addition, the University is enrolling new students in the program for the next school year. Case closed.




2
image5.png




image6.png




image8.png




image7.png




image4.png




image2.png




image1.png




image3.png




